ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 1, 2004
3:22 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 425

"An Act relating to funding for school districts operating
secondary school boarding programs, to funding for schoo
districts from which boarding students cone, and to inoperative
school districts; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 425(EDU) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 427

"An Act relating to guardi anshi ps and conservatorships, to the
public guardian and the office of public advocacy, to private
pr of essi onal guardians and private professional conservators, to
court visitors, court-appointed attorneys, guardians ad litem
and fiduciaries, and to the protection of the person or property
of certain individuals, including mnors; anending Rules 16(f)
and 17(e), Al aska Rules of Probate Procedure; and providing for
an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 239
"An Act directing the Departnment of Public Safety to establish

an Internet-based identification and tracking systemrelating to
controll ed substances that are prescribed for human use; and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2004



relating to the manner in which prescriptions for controlled
substances may be filled by a pharnmacist.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BILL NO. 72

"An Act relating to the qualifications and appointnent of
menbers of the Board of Regents of the University of Al aska; and
providing for an effective date."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 543
"An Act relating to medical assistance coverage for prescription
drugs; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 338
"An Act relating to attendance at public school; and providing
for an effective date.™
- REMOVED FROM AGENDA
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 425

SHORT TITLE: BOARDI NG SCHOOL FUNDI NG
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE(S) COGHI LL

02/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 04 (H) EDU, HES, FIN

03/ 02/ 04 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 02/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 04 (H) M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 09/ 04 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 09/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 425(EDU) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 09/ 04 (H) M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 18/ 04 (H) EDU RPT CS(EDU) NT 1DP 2NR 3AM

03/ 18/ 04 (H DP: GARA;, NR 0OGG WOLF;, AM SEATOQN,
03/ 18/ 04 (H) W LSON, GATTO

04/ 01/ 04 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 427

SHORT TI TLE: PROTECTI ON OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) ANDERSON

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2004



02/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 04 (H) HES, JUD
04/ 01/ 04 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

EDDI E JEANS, Fi nance Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 425 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

FLOYD BROCOKS
Nenana, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425.

SANDRA EGLESTON, Counsel or

Nenana Student Living Center

Nenana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425.

RALPH LI NDQUI ST, Dean of Students

Nenana Student Living Center

Nenana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

LI SA BROCKS, St udent

Nenana Student Living Center

Nenana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

JOHN GRIMVES, Dormtory Staff

Nenana Student Living Center

Nenana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

JIM SM TH, Superi nt endent

Gal ena Residential School Program

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2004



ALFRED KETZLER, Executive Director

Nenana Nati ve Counci

Nenana, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425.

ANN ESNMAI LKA
Kal t ag, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 425.

JIM SHI NE, Staff

to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the bill on behal f of
Representative Anderson, sponsor of HB 427 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

BETTY VELLS, President

Al aska State Association for Guardi anshi p Advocacy (ASAGA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 427 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

JOSH FINK, Director

O fice of Public Advocacy

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 427 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

JI M PARKER, Attorney

Publ i c Guardi an Section

O fice of Public Advocacy

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 427.

"B" JARVI, Professional CGuardian

Pr of essi onal Guardi an Services Corporation
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 427.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-26, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal |l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:22 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2004



Representatives WIson, Gatto, WlIf, Coghill, and Seaton were
present at the call to order. Representati ves Cissna and
Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 425- BOARDI NG SCHOOL FUNDI NG
Nunber 0104

CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 425, "An Act relating to funding for school
districts operating secondary school boarding prograns, to
funding for school districts from which boarding students cone,
and to inoperative school districts; and providing for an
effective date.”

Number 0170

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, testified
as sponsor of HB 425. He told the nmenbers that boardi ng school s
in Alaska have historically caused sone pain, but there are also
boarding schools that have proven to be very valuable. For
i nstance, the M. Edgecunbe boarding school has shown itself to
be a great asset to Al aska. Currently students who do not have
daily access to a high school education are allowed to receive a
stipend and round trip airfare to a |location where an education
is avail able. Representative Coghill said that HB 425 expands
that offering by providing that students may travel to a
boardi ng school and receive a stipend even if there is daily
access to a high school education in the communities where the
students |ive.

Nunmber 0302

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said that there is a cost to this
offering. In an effort to contain the cost, HB 425 provides for
a pilot programto be offered only to boarding schools which are
already in operation. There is a sunset provision in the bill
of July 1, 2009. Anot her cost saving provision is that this
| egislation only applies to boarding schools which offer a ful

year of education of 180 days of operation. He pointed to the
revised fiscal note dated 3/10/04 which reflects the cost to be
$1,179 million to fund the boarding schools presently in
operation. Representative Coghill explained that this fiscal
note shows a savings fromthe original fiscal note of $227, 000.

Nunber 0425

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that he believes boarding schools
offer a flexibility that is valuable to Al aska. He told the
menbers that in his honmetown of Nenana there were sone econom c
reasons for opening a boarding school. He explained that the
community had a large school with a dw ndling popul ation. The
comunity put forth a significant anount of capital to nake the
boarding program work by taking out a loan and putting up a
bui | di ng.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL told the nenbers that currently a schoo
that has enrollnment which falls below ten students has to close
because it would no longer qualify for state funding. |In HB 425
if the enrollnent in a school drops below the ten-student
m ni rum because a student opted to attend a boarding school the
school would be held harmess from closure, he explained. For
exanple, the school in Circle could be in trouble if student
enrol Il ment drops and he does not want that to happen. He
suggested that t he Depart nent of Educati on and Early
Devel opnent's representative can go into nore detail about that
poi nt .

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that he believes this is an
inportant option for students who wsh to attend boarding
schools for a variety of reasons, whether it is course offerings
in math and science, or famly and social issues. He pointed
out that Galena has done a good job of offering a variety of
vocational classes; Nenana has a cultural enphasis, and M.
Edgecunbe' s enphasis is on academi cs.

Number 0634

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL told the nenbers that each of the schools
has its own acceptance criteria, and nbost have waiting |ists.

Nunmber 0685

CHAIR WLSON announced that Representatives Cissna and Kapsner
j oi ned the neeting.

CHAIR WLSON asked for clarification on a portion of the sponsor
statenent which reads as foll ows:

The hold harmless section of this bill allows a
student's district of residence to count a student for
the ADM count even though the student is attending a
secondary boar di ng school . Thi s avoi ds t he

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2004



possibility of paying the base allocation twice for
t he sanme student.

CHAIR WLSON asked if this nmeans that the boarding school does
not count the students, but the school the students cane from
counts them

Number 0730

EDDI E JEANS, Finance Manager, School Finance and Facilities
Secti on, Depar t ment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
testified on HB 425 and answered questions for the nenbers. The
hol d harm ess provision sinply states that if a commnity that
has a snmall student population |oses a couple of students who
elect to attend a boarding school, that could nean that the
school would fall below the state's threshold of ten students
and be forced to close, he explained. Wth the hold harnl ess
provision the departnment would hold that school harmess from
closure due to the drop in ADM and fund the school for ten
students, M. Jeans said. He rem nded the nenbers that in the
previous conmttee there was discussion about the fact that the
departnment provides a base level of funding for 10 to 20
students. M. Jeans sunmmarized that the hold harnl ess provision
sinply extends the range to 8 or 9 to 20 students for a base
| evel of funding if one of the students elects to attend a
boar di ng school .

Number 0797

CHAIR WLSON asked if funding follows the student or stays wth
the district where the student fornerly attended.

MR. JEANS expl ained that the state would pay the boardi ng school
both through the foundation program and through the boarding
stipend to cover the residential conponent. He said that
basically all that is being done is extending that base nunber
of students down for the community that has a snmall student
popul ation. He said the state is not paying for the sane child
tw ce. It is a safety net for that community [that | oses
students to boardi ng school s], he added.

CHAI R WLSON questioned whether this isn't paying twice for the
same student.

MR. JEANS replied that the state is not paying tw ce unless

there is speculation that a student |eaves the school in his/her
hone comunity and the enrollnent falls to eight or nine

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2004



student s. In that case that school would not be funded as a

separate school, it would be added to a larger school in the
sanme district. He reiterated that he does not see this as
paying for a student twice; it is just holding the school

harm ess [from cl osure] while students go to a boardi ng program

CHAIR WLSON asked if there were 15 student and two left to
attend a boarding school would there be a change in the funding
| evel .

MR. JEANS responded that there would be no change in the funding
| evel . In this case, the school would still be in the 10 to 20
student range, so the hold harmess provision would not be
necessary.

Number 0924

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA commented that the loss of a few critica

students could put the state right back in the situation before
the Molly Hootch [case]. She told the nenbers that back in the
1970s she was present during a discussion in Mnto on the Mlly
Hootch case. Representative Cissna explained that she worked
with sone of the kids who were taken away from their hones
before they were ready and sonme horrifying things happened to
them She stated that there are a |lot of kids who are dead now
because of those prograns. She asked how this |egislation does
not | ead to another horrifying episode.

Nunber 1040

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed that Al aska has had an interesting
hi story of boarding schools. An inportant difference is that
those boarding schools were nmandated. The current boarding
school prograns are perm ssive and students nust apply to be
adm tted. These schools normally enjoy a lot of parental
support, a denonstrated need, and a wllingness to address

personal, cultural, and econom c issues. Representative Coghil

enphasi zed that the boarding schools currently operating are
totally different fromthose operated prior to Mdlly Hootch. He
added that currently students have to stand in line to be
admtted to one of these boarding schools, and that is the
reason he put a limt on the nunber of boarding schools that
could participate in the program He said it is not so nuch
that he wanted to limt the nunber of boarding schools, but that
the state's ability to pay for it is limted. Representati ve
Coghill said he wants see how the current boarding schools
continue to do with this program and believes it to be a good

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2004



educati onal option. He advised the commttee that this pilot
programis only offered to about 300 student.

MR. JEANS enphasi zed that none of the students in these prograns
are required to l|leave their hones. This bill provides the
school districts which offer full year boarding hone prograns
some revenue to help offset the residential costs of operating
t hose prograns. This is an optional educational experience, he
added. The hold harmess provision is a safety net for the
comunity in which a student may elect to leave in order to
participate in one of the boarding school prograns, he said.
M. Jeans told the nenbers that currently there are no schools
that would require this safety net because it has not effected a

school that snall. He said he thinks what Representative
Coghill is trying to provide boarding schools wth sone revenue
to help with the residential costs of these prograns. At the

sane tine, he is trying to be sensitive to the small conmunities
that could have a couple of secondary students who may take
advantage of the program so he is trying to ensure through the
hold harm ess provision that a small school would not have to
close while the state is |looking at the boardi ng honme prograns,
M. Jeans said.

Number 1255

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO posed a hypothetical question of a schoo
that has 17 students. At that nunber the school is funded at a
fixed rate whether there are 16 students or 17 students. If a
student decides to go to a boarding school in Nenana the schoo
he/ she | eaves suffers no loss in funding which relates to the

hold harm ess portion of this bill. This bill provides for a
stipend to be paid for the residential expenses to the boarding
school . He asked if the base student allocation follows the
st udent .

Nunber 1340

MR. JEANS replied that very exanple is happening now. The base
student allocation goes to the school in which the student is
enrolled. For exanple, Nenana is serving 96 students who do not
reside in Nenana. However, Nenana is currently generating
funding for those students through the foundation-funding
program he said. He went on to say that sone of these students
may cone from comunities that fall within the range of 10 to 20
students, and sone may cone from Fairbanks. He enphasi zed t hat
these prograns are up and operating and the departnment 1is
providing foundation funding for these kids' educat i onal

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2004



conponent . However, the state is not providing funding for the
residential conmponent of the program This bill sinply provides
sone residential support [through a stipend].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that if the student attended a
school in Fairbanks, then the school district in Fairbanks would
| ose funding through the base student allocation because he/she
is no longer enrolled there.

MR. JEANS responded that he is correct.
Nunber 1370

FLOYD BROOKS testified in support of HB 425. He told the
menbers that he has three daughters who attend the Nenana Living
Center. The educational opportunity there is excellent and has
given them a safe place to live and work. In addition the
school has provided extracurricular activities that mght not
ot herwi se be available such as the snowboarders club, trips to
Fai r banks, and whitewater rafting in Denali National Park and
Preserve. M. Brooks said the staff at the center are great and
have the kids' best interest at heart. He told the nenbers that
academic failure is not an option for these kids. Thi s Nenana
Living Center option has also allowed him the opportunity to
seek enploynent out of town which would not otherw se be
possible. He pointed out that it only costs $9,000 for students
to attend the Nenana Living Center where nany of the snal

villages cost as nuch as $27,000 per student. In summary, M.
Brooks told the nenbers that this is a case where everyone w ns.

Nunmber 1489
CHAI R W LSON asked M. Brooks what village he lives in.
MR. BROOKS responded that he lives in Nenana, but has been
wor king in Fort Yukon. He added that the Nenana Living Center
has provided a safe place for his daughters to | earn.
Nunber 1552
SANDRA EGLESTON read the following testinony [original
punctuation provided although some formatting changes have been
made] :

| amcalling in support of HB 425 which woul d provide

funding for districts operating secondary schoo
boar di ng prograns. | was hired by the Nenana Schoo

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2004



District as a counselor for the living center when it
opened in the fall of 2001. It is my understanding
that prior to 2001 the district recognized a need in
the state to offer school alternatives to rural
student s. As Representative Coghill nentioned the
community was also concerned about the dw ndling
nunmber of |ocal students. Si nce Nenana had (and has)
a large school facility, as well as a dedicated and
pr of essi onal staff, the school board wth the
comunity's support nade the decision to build a dorm
and then fill their classroons with students from
around the state -- which is exactly what has happened
for the past three years.

This year the students of NSLC represented 27
different villages. The first year there was sone
adverti sement about the opening of the new facility;
but since then the only advertisenent has been by word
of nmouth. Yet each fall there have been sone good
applicants who have had to be denied acceptance
because of | ack of space. The NSLC is running at full
capacity while there is an ever-growing waiting |ist

of student applicants. | think this is a fact that
i ndi cates the need of boarding school prograns in the
state.

Nunber 1604

Recently | happened to tune into NPR s Tal k of Al aska
radio show which that day was titled, "A M. Edgecunbe
Reuni on. " Several generations of Edgecunbe graduates
called in to talk about their positive experiences at
t he boarding school. As | listened to it | was anmazed
to listen to the simlarities of these people's
comments and what | have witnessed at NSLC the past
three years. The callers' varied reasons for going to
Edgecunbe paralleled what has been witten in NSLC
student applications: Students and famlies want the
safety, structure and stability which dorm Iliving
offers; they seek a quality education with qualified
teachers and a variety of class offerings; they hope
for opportunities to participate in extra-curricular
activities; famlies want for their <children a
foundati on of accepting responsibility and devel oping
coping skills as they live away from hone; dorm living
offers a transition from village |life to the "bigger
world"; it is a step to further prepare those students

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2004



with anbitions to go on to college or vocational

school . The Edgecunbe graduates spoke about the many
positive aspects they appreciated: the strong
positive influence they felt in their lives as
teenagers; the Ilifelong friendships they devel oped;
the sense of famly and comunity felt wthin the
boarding school; how conflicts were resolved and
friendships prevail ed over any initial tribal
friction. Again, these comments are very simlar to
what is heard from NSLC parents and students. One

speaker spoke of the sense of wurgency she and other
students as well as staff nenbers felt in '82 when

they were witing letters to legislators and
testifying in an attenpt to keep the doors of
Edgecunbe open. And here we are calling you today.

She spoke of the great sense of |oss and defeat when
t he Edgecunmbe doors closed in '83 for those several
years. And that is sonething that | am hoping can be
averted here in NSLC.

Just as M. Edgecunbe is fulfilling a need in the
state, the NSLC is fulfilling a need in the state.
Famlies from all around the state are seeking
educational alternatives for their children. The
NSLC, as well as @Glena, offers an option in the

interior part of Al aska. For the first two years the
school district fully funded the NSLC. Now, in order
to continue to keep the NSLC doors open, financial
support is needed from the state. HB 425, if passed,
woul d provide that funding. Thank you for taking tine
to hear testinony today.

Number 1811

RALPH LI NDQUI ST, Dean of Students, Nenana Student Living Center

testified in support of HB 425 and answered questions from the
menbers. He echoed M. Jean's comments that the Nenana boarding
school is not the sanme kind of boarding school that was in place
30 years ago. The school is an option. Nenana does not go into
the villages trying to enroll students. Peopl e are seeking
Nenana, he said. O the students who are enrolled this year and
who are eligible to cone back next year, 80 percent have already
enrol | ed. M. Lindquist comented that March 31st is the
deadline for enrollnment and acceptance letters wll be sent
around the 1st of April. There are 200 applicants presently on
file and it will be necessary to pick and choose 75 of them
because that is all the school has room for next year. It would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2004



be a shame to not only tell the 125 kids that there isn't room
for them but to also tell the other 75 that they won't be
accept ed because of lack of funding.

MR. LINDQUI ST explained that when the kids in town are having
parent/teacher conferences during the first and third quarters
the school sends six teans out to the villages to neet wth
parents. One team just returned from St. Mary and Mountain
Village and the nunber of requests for enrollnent is scary as
our demand keeps going up and the nunber of slots open keeps
goi ng down, he said. M. Lindquist explained that the Nenana
community does not ever wsh to be larger that 100 students.

MR, LINDQUI ST commented that Representative Coghill said that
Nenana would provide for 100 students, but it will really only
have room for 75. At that nunber it will generate about $4,450
per student if HB 425 passes as witten. He said with 75 kids
that is about $338,000 which is probably less than the top
dol | ar amount the bill is |ooking at.

MR, LINDQUI ST told the nenbers that in the first year, 2001-2002
Nenana received zero funding for the operations of the Nenana
Student Living Center, for 2002-2003 it again received zero
funds, but in 2002-2003 the center received a one-tinme grant of
$500, 000.

Number 1894

MR, LINDQUI ST said that according to a report published by
Senator Wlkens if the 75 students who attended Nenana Student
Living Center had stayed in their honme communities, it would
have cost the state of Alaska an additional $350, 000. In
summary he said, Nenana is providing an excellent education and
doing it for less noney than it would cost to educate the
student's in their hone village.

Nunber 1915

CHAIR WLSON asked if she understands correctly that community
of Nenana built the boarding school and hoped that the noney
woul d fol | ow.

MR. LINDQUI ST replied that he was not at Nenana when this took
pl ace. He thought perhaps Representative Coghill mght have
some background on that. M. Lindquist explained that he had
been an educator in a K-12 facility and decided to take sone
time off. He then got involved in this project and has found it

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2004



totally consum ng. The staff and the school district is so
supportive of this programthat ways have been found to fund it.

Nunber 1967

LI SA BROOKS, student, Nenana Student Living Center, testified in
support of HB 425 and answered questions from the nenbers. She
expl ai ned that she and her two sisters attend the Nenana Student
Living Center. Oiginally she lived in Nenana and living at the
center has given her the opportunity to inprove her grades. M.
Brooks said she is currently an honor student which is sonething
she had never achieved before. She said the staff nenbers
really care about the students, and the activities are great.
Ms. Brooks added that she is a nmenber of the snowboarding club
There are a wde variety of course offerings such as EM,
culinary arts, and construction classes, she said.

Nunmber 2038

CHAIR WLSON asked if WM. Brooks lives at hone or in the
boar di ng school .

M5. BROCKS responded that she lives at the living center. She
said that when her dad got a job in Fort Yukon she had the
choice of going to Fort Yukon or staying in Nenana and attending
the Nenana Student Living Center. She comented that she is
happy she stayed i n Nenana.

Nunber 2064

JOHN GRIMES, Dormtory Parents, Nenana Student Living Center,
testified in support of HB 425 and answered questions from the
menbers. He shared that he and his wife canme to Alaska in 1994
from Dallas, Texas, with their six children. Because of the
wor k he had done with teenagers he believed this boarding school
would be a good thing for the community and the students who
enrol | ed. He spoke at a comunity hearing and was asked to
serve on the steering comrittee to nove forward wth the
process.

Number 2141

MR. GRIMES commented that earlier the question was asked about
the plan for funding when the boarding school program was first

expl or ed. He said that the community believed that "if you
build it, the noney will cone.”" The reality is that the noney
was not there and it was a rude awakening. Ral ph Li ndqui st

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2004



Dean of Students, should be credited with getting the Iliving
center on a good solid foundation, he said.

MR. GRIMES said that he had no intention of being involved wth

the school, but he and his wife were asked to be dormtory
parents. For the first two years they were in the girls wng
and it was an incredible experience. M. Gines told the
menbers that the third year they decided it was tine for a
change and have been in the boys' w ng. He said that he just
returned from a week in Kongiganak where there were parent
conf erences. It was a great trip and students are very excited

about going to Nenana. He said he believes what he and his wfe
bring to the school is their experience raising seven kids, only
one of which is still at home. M. Ginmes told the nenbers that
these kids cone there scared, without direction in what to do in
life, and the staff just helps to guide them and do whatever can
be done. This is an incredible program and urged the nmenbers to
support HB 425. In closing he said he does not want to | ook
these guys in the eyes and tell themthey can't cone back. That
would be the toughest hall neeting he could have with these
guys, he said.

Nunber 2243

CHAIR WLSON asked if his <children live with him at the
dormtory

MR. GRIMES replied that all but one child is grown and gone from
home. Nathaniel is ten and lives in the dorm and goes to Nenana
school, he has 17 big brothers and 40 or 50 big sisters. He

commented that he has the typical little brother syndronme where
he gets on the ol der boy's nerves, the older boys put himin his
pl ace, and everything' s fine. He said Nathaniel loves it, we

| ove it, and believes the students do too.
Nunmber 2308

JIM SMTH, Superintendent, Galena Residential School Program
Galena City School District, testified in support of HB 425 and
answered questions from the nenbers. In response to
Representative Gatto's question, M. Smth responded that Gal ena
shares several prograns wi th Nenana. Sonme of the funding that
the boarding schools have enjoyed have cone from federa
assi stance through Senator Stevens. Currently Galena is in the
first year of support from an Al aska Natives grant which is
funding five staff nenbers at the Galena dormtory, two staff
menbers at the Nenana dormtory, and three staff nenbers at M.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 1, 2004



Edgecunbe. He explained that all of that funding is directed
toward training for the ASSETS program which was brought to the
school by the Al aska Association of School Boards.

MR SMTH told the nenbers that Galena does not operate wth
dormtory parents as Nenana does; it has a dormtory staff. The
dormtory houses 85 students at the forner airbase. There is a
director with 12 dormitory staff,.three of which are hal
managers, two floor managers, and six residential advisers. The
nodel Galena uses is close to what one would expect to see in a
col | ege. He agreed with nuch of the previous testinony the
menbers have heard with respect to the return rate of students.
This year it was 100 percent, and there is a waiting list for
next year. The school has prioritized the waiting list to give
preference to siblings who are currently enroll ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that in addition to the
boarding school program Galena also has the Interior D stance
Education of Alaska (IDEA) program He asked if the two
prograns are involved in any way.

TAPE 04-26, SIDE B
Number 2380

MR SMTH explained that the residential students are in a
separate program on the base. He said that students are bused
between the two city schools and the base for the vocational
pr ogram Students who are enrolled in the |IDEA correspondence
school program do cone to Galena for two weeks when the students
spend tinme in different vocational progranms. For exanple, there
is a pre-flight school where |DEA students cone to Gal ena, stay
at the dormtory, and take part in sone of the introductory

pilot training classes. The sanme is true of the nechanics
course that is offered. However, M. Smth enphasized that the
students in the residential program do  not use the

correspondence program
Number 2324

ALFRED KETZLER, Executive Director, Nenana Native Council

testified in support of HB 425. He told the nenbers that Nenana
has a long history of boarding schools dating back to the turn
of the century when the Episcopal Church ran a boarding schoo

through the 1950s. Then again in the late 1960s the | ocal
church ran a boarding school program which continued through
1974, when it was taken over by the housing authority out of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2004



Fai rbanks until the 1980s. M. Ketzler explained that there was
a period of tinme after that when no boarding hone in Nenana
exi st ed. The comunity began working together again on the
boarding hone concept because Nenana had a |arge school and
pl enty of room for students.

MR. KETZLER shared that the local tribe has just announced that
it wll be breaking ground in June on a recreational vyouth
education center. It wll be a multi-purpose center, but wll
be primarily wused to <create additional opportunities for
activities for the students who cone to Nenana from all over the
state. He said that he believes this is a very strong
i ndication of the tribe's support of the boardi ng honme program

Nunber 2216

ANN ESMAI LKA, parent of a student at Nenana Student Living
Center, testified in support of HB 425. She told the nenbers
that she is very pleased with the way the boarding school is
oper at ed. The educational opportunities are challenging and
there are also nore recreational activities available to the
students than what is provided in the village.

Number 2163

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Jeans for clarification on the
statement that the base student allocation follow the student.
The base student allocation in Nenana is based on the nunber of
students for that district, and not on the base student
al l ocation provided to the hone district of the student.

Nunber 2144
MR. JEANS replied that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO conmented that since that is true, there is
a net savings to the state when a student transfers to a
boarding home program even though there is a net cost in
funding the boarding school. He said he believes it is probably
not "a wash," but certainly not as lopsided as it mght seemto
be.

CHAIR WLSON said that at M. Edgecunbe the students get an

excel | ent education. She asked what the funding level is at M.
Edgecunbe.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2004



MR, JEANS replied that M. Edgecunbe receives a little over
$14,000 [per student] for the instructional and residential
conponent s.

CHAIR WLSON commented that it is inportant to | ook at the costs
of these progranms and what is being acconpli shed.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL told the nenbers that he included a
sunset provision in the bill deliberately to ensure that the
| egi slature will take a close | ook at boardi ng school prograns.

Nunmber 2069

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noved to report HB 425, Version H, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, House Health, Education
and Social Services Standing Committee reported CSHB 425(EDU)
out of commttee.

HB 427- PROTECTI ON OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
Nunmber 1998

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 427, "An Act relating to guardianships and
conservatorships, to the public guardian and the office of
public advocacy, to private professional guardians and private
prof essional conservators, to court visitors, court-appointed
attorneys, guardians ad l|litem and fiduciaries, and to the
protection of the person or property of certain individuals,
including mnors; anending Rules 16(f) and 17(e), Al aska Rules
of Probate Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

Number 1960

JIM SHINE, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented the bill on behalf of Representative
Ander son, sponsor of HB 427. He provided the follow ng sponsor
st at enent :

HB 427 will go a long way towards preventing
exploitation and m streatnent of vul nerable and
i ncapacitated adults receiving the services of a
private guardian or conservator. It was drafted with
i nput from the Al aska State  Association for
GQuar di anship and Advocacy, also known as ASAGA, the
Ofice of Public Advocacy, Adult Protective Services,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2004



the Long-Term Care Onbudsman's office, the Disability
Law Center, and the Senior Advocacy Coalition

In Al aska, professional guardians (both private and
public) and famly guardians provide services to
approxi mately 2,500 di sabl ed, vul nerable adults.

Under current |aw, private guardians and conservators
- individuals with the responsibility to nmake housi ng,
| egal and nedical decisions for the disabled, infirm

mentally ill, and seniors - are conpletely unregul ated
by the State. Many other states regulate their
private guardians appropriately so. Vul nerabl e and

incapacitated adults are easy prey for those w shing
to exploit their resources.

This legislation would grant the State regulatory
authority over private guardians and conservators and

establish mnimm qualifications and standards. The
State oversight and standards for such a sensitive and
critical job wll help ensure that vulnerable and

i ncapacitated adults receive the care they deserve.

HB 427 woul d ensure those individuals or organizations
wi shing to serve as private guardians or conservators
nmeet certain criteria, and register wth the State.
Speci fically, this | egi sl ation requires private
guardians to be certified by the National Guardianship
Foundation and have at least 2 years of professional
experience working with clients, or a degree in hunman

servi ces, soci al wor K, psychol ogy, soci ol ogy,
gerontol ogy, special education, or a closely related
field. HB 427 wll also require guardians to have
experience in financial managenent or a degree in
accounti ng. Critically, this legislation prohibits
private guardians from registering with the State and
practicing until a State and national crim nal

background check is perforned.

Finally, HB 427 allows the D vision of Occupational
Licensing to revoke a private guardian's license if he
or she has been found to have abandoned, exploited,
abused, or neglected his or her ward, or has becone
unfit due to professional inconpetence. In short,
t hrough regul atory oversight and the establishnment of
prof essional and academ c standards, this |egislation

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2004



will help ensure disabled adults are not exploited by
those entrusted to nanage their affairs.

Nunber 1882

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt CSHB 427, 23-LS1627\D,
Banni ster, 4/1/04, before the commttee as the working docunent.
There being no objection, CSHB 427, Version D, was before the
House Heal t h, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

MR. SHINE responded that he wll defer to Betty Wlls who has
been working with the drafter on the bill. He comrented that it
is his understanding that Version D has taken away nobst of the
registration requirenents and placed the responsibility with the
Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing.

Number 1854

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the commttee could be advi sed of
the differences between Version A and Version D.

Nunber 1806

BETTY VEELLS, Pr esi dent, Al aska State Associ ation for
Guar di anshi p Advocacy (ASAGA); testified in support of HB 427
and answered questions from the nmnmenbers. She provided the

foll ow ng statenent:

In terns of what you have in front of you, the first
ten pages are the sections [Sec. 13.26.]500 through
[ Section 13.26.]590 from the earlier draft and took
the statutory regulations pretty nuch verbatim out of
500 through 590 and put that into Gccupational
Li censi ng. So the first ten pages of the commttee
substitute were in the old draft, they were just in
t he back. In addition to doing that it also added
sone new |anguage with requirenents for licensure in
terms of age of the person, education, experience, and
provides for a tenporary license and those are in
08.26.030 and 040, on page tw of the comttee
substitute. That is the major change from the draft
to the commttee substitute.

CHAIR WLSON commented that this is an effort to pull all of
[l1icensing requirenents] together.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2004



IVS. VELLS replied that the requirenents were in the
guardi anshi ps statutes in AS 13.26. They were noved out of the
registration for private professional guardians and pulled
together and noved to the statutes for occupational |I|icensing
which is in AS 08.01. After conferring with the D vision of
Cccupational Licensing it was decided that there was greater
confort in nonitoring this program by calling it a |license, she
sai d. It has gone from a registration to a license under the
D vision of Cccupational Licensing, she added.

M5. WELLS told the nmenbers that the other |anguage in the bill
is clarifying current statutory |anguage and practice. She
reiterated that the vital changes are in the first ten pages of
the commttee substitute which regul ates private guardi ans. Ms.
Wells explained that currently Alaska has no regulations in
pl ace. A couple of years ago there was an incident with a
private agency and it eventually went bankrupt. There is stil
fallout from that, and this event made ASAGA realize that it
could no longer be thought that Al askans are protected, she
sai d.

M5. WELLS said that Alaska is not alone in the effort to protect
vul nerabl e adults. She shared that there have been recent news
articles in the Detroit Free Press and out of Queens, New York
expressing the need for wi de spread reform

Number 1712

M5. WELLS reiterated M. Shine's coments that this was a
col | aborative effort which took place over the | ast six years.

Nunmber 1682
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked Ms. Wells if she is a guardi an.

M5. VEELLS replied no. She told the nenbers that she is a court
visitor in the Third Judicial District in Anchorage. Ms. Wells
explained that she has been working wth adult guardian
i nvestigations for about 15 years.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked Ms. Wells if she has a famly nenber
or a personal friend that is a guardi an

MS. WELLS responded that she does not. She enphasized that she
works w th guardians. Ms. Wells explained that she is a
registered guardian with the National Guardianship Foundation
through her work and has served as a guardian on a contract

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2004



basis through the Ofice of Public Advocacy at different tines.
She stated she primarily works as a court investigator.

Nunber 1622

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO conmmented that the bill is 28 pages |ong,
and the sectional analysis has 33 parts. He asked if Ms. Wells
woul d provide a summari zi ng statenent.

MS. WVELLS reiterated that the first ten pages of the commttee
substitute is new legislation which is being proposed to
regul ate private agencies. Currently there is no legislation in
pl ace. For exanple, a person could have a felony conviction for
enbezzlenent and if a judge were conned into appointing that
person he/she could serve as a guardian. She explained that the
new |legislation takes the responsibility away from the judges

and places the Ilicensing requirenent wth the D vision of
Cccupational Licensing. The rest of the bill is basically
clarification and clean up |anguage of the conservatorship and
guar di anship statutes. She stated that ASAGA believes it is

essential to put trust back in the system Ms. Wells told the
menbers that Alaska is far ahead of nmany states with respect to
the rights that are guaranteed to vul nerabl e adults.

Number 1491

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what was the conposition of the group
who devel oped what constituted good regul ati ons.

Number 1479

MS. WELLS responded that there was a study done by the MDowel
Research Group in 1997 which was funded through the D vision of
Senior Services in Anchorage. The MDowel |l Study nade six mgjor
recommendations. The groups that has been working on this since
1997 are the Disability Law Center, private attorneys, public
guar di ans, private guardi anship agencies, court officials,
famly guardians, Adult Protective Services, and the Long-Term
Care Qrbudsnman.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked if the group |ooked at what other
states have done.

M5. WVELLS replied that currently Washington and Arizona require
that a private professional guardian be |icensed or registered
with the state and be certified by the National Guardianship
Foundat i on. As of January 1, 2003 Florida requires al

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2004



prof essional guardians be |icensed and seek ongoing education.
California is now working on state specific certification that
will work with national certification. She said she believes
these states are ahead of Al aska. Ms. Wells explained that
there are states out there that do not offer respondents rights
of having an attorney or a court hearing. She sunmari zed t hat
Al aska has been ahead in sone of the recommendations that have
been nade nationally, but HB 427 is an inportant bill

Nunmber 1308

JOSH FINK, Director, Ofice of Public Advocacy (OPA), testified
in support of HB 427 and answered questions from the nenbers

He told the nenbers that he believes this bill is critical
because there is a need to regulate the professional industry
that has such imrense power over vulnerable and incapacitated
adul ts. The state regulates hairdressers, but it does not
regul ate people who make decisions about others nedical care,
housi ng, or |egal decisions. He remi nded the nenbers of an
i ncident that happened many years ago where a private guardi an
went bankrupt. He commented that the office is still dealing
wi th the consequences of that event.

MR FINK said he believes it is inportant to ensure the
integrity of this industry with the public and the courts. He
explained the OPA is currently the guardian of last resort.
When | ooking for a guardian the famly is considered first and
then private organizations are suppose to be considered before
going to OPA. However, increasingly the courts do not have any
| evel of confidence in the private guardians out there so OPA is
bei ng appointed nore and nore. M. Fink said he would like to
encourage the devel opnent of nore private professional guardi ans

and conservators. It would be better for private professionals
to cover that void than governnent agencies, he added. He said
he does not believe that there will be an industry devel oped

with the level of confidence needed in the private sector unti
there are state regulations in place.

Nunmber 1188

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked M. Fink if he, any nmenber of his
famly, or a personal friend are guardi ans.

MR. FINK replied that there a nunber of public guardians in the

agency. He commented that Jim Parker, Supervisor, Public
GQuardi ans Section, of OPA, and Steve Young, lead public
guardian, are sitting in on this neeting. M. Fink added that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- April 1, 2004



he is also acquainted with "B" Jarvi in Fairbanks who is a
private guardian

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if these individuals have gone through
the process and have answered the questions necessary to be a
guardi an for a vul nerable adult.

MR FINK comented that Sharon Wlls was instrunental in
crafting the |egislation. He said OPA's public guardians,
including Steve Young and Jim Parker worked on the bill also.

The Private Guardian Services Corporation (PGSC) where "B" Jarvi
is associated has been a nenber of ASAGA, but recently, he said
it withdrew fromthe group.

Nunber 1087

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 16, lines 7 through 11
and read the foll ow ng new | anguage:

When appointing a relative or a friend of the
i ncapaci tat ed person as t he guar di an of an
i ncapaci tated person, the court shall require that the
proposed guardian conplete one hour of nanadatory
education on the basics of a guardianship before the
appoi ntnment or within 30 days after the appoi ntnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the one-hour course exists now or
is a requirenent that will be fornulated after the passage of
this | egislation.

Nunmber 1036

MR. FINK responded that the OPA currently provides training to
famlies on how to provide guardi anship services. That training
is made available to comunities and there are a nunber of
peopl e who offer classes. He added that OPA also has books

videos, and witten nmaterial which has been put in public
libraries. He added that currently OPA has distributed nmateri al
to the courthouse as well. In summary this is not a class that
needs to be created, the material is already available, M. Fink
sai d.

Nunber 1011

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if any faith-based groups are doing
this kind of work.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 1, 2004



MR. FINK replied not to his know edge.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if guardian ad litenms for adults
with disabilities is pretty much the sane as guardian ad |litens
for children in need of aid cases (CINA).

MR. FINK responded that the two are different. The guardian ad
litenms in a child s case represents the best interest of the
child. Wen the problens are resolved, the guardian ad litemis
no | onger involved. When there is an adult with a public or
private guardian typically nost disabled adults have life-long
disabilities and the guardian would be a |ong-term guardian and
woul d be | ooking out for the best interest of the client.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER commented that in ClINA cases the guardian
ad litens are appointed, and asked if it works the sane way with
guar di ans.

MR FINK replied there are two different processes. In CINA
cases typically the state will renoved a child from the hone,
and start the court process. However, w th guardi anship case a
petitioner could be a famly nenber, a friend, or a co-worker.
It still requires going to court, but there are different |aws
that apply, he said.

Nunmber 0850

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER referred to Section 7 in the sectiona
anal ysis where it says:

Section 7. Deletes an option for a guardian to
request that a visitor be appointed to prepare and
submt a report. Requires a court to appoint a

visitor every three years to file a report reviewng
t he guardi anshi p.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER commented that she is unfamliar with the
term nol ogy and asked what the term "visitor" neans in this
case.

Number 0850

MS. WELLS replied that the current |anguage indicates that a
visitor would be appointed to do a report. The intent of the
statute is that a visitor would be appointed to do a report
reviewi ng guardi anship every three years. The guardian has to
do a report every year, and then every three years a visitor has

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- April 1, 2004



to do a report for the courts. This is just «clarifying
| anguage, she comrent ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER reiterated that she does not know what
"visitor" neans in this context.

M5. WELLS responded that 1in this bill a wvisitor is an
i nvesti gator. The visitor provides notice to the person and
talks to the petitioner, the person, the doctor, and relatives.
The visitor provides a report to the court prior to a guardian
bei ng appointed. Then every three years the visitor provides a
review of the guardianship to the court. This | anguage just
clarifies that a review is done every three years, not every
year, she said.

Number 0750

JI M PARKER, Attorney, Public Guardian Section, Ofice of Public
Advocacy, testified on HB 427. He told the nenbers that the
Ofice of Public Advocacy is the agency of last resort. It
provi des guardianship services to disabled adults who do not
have famly or friends available to serve. Wen a private
organi zati on went bankrupt a few years ago it left a lot of
people in bad shape, he said. It is inportant that it does not
happen again. He said he believes that HB 427 will not nmake it
too onerous or difficult for those who are willing to serve, M.
Par ker comment ed. There needs to be a good balance that wll
protect vul nerabl e Al askans.

Nunmber 0636

"B" JARVI, Professional Guardian, Professional CGuardian Services
Corporation, testified on HB 427. She told the nenbers that
private professional guardians are not notified that cases are
available from the court visitor, the court itself, or the OPA
contract attorney. M. Jarvi said she has been told that it is
the decision of the head court visitor to omt notifying
prof essi onal guardi ans of cases avail able. Ms. Jarvi told the
menbers that since she is not in court it is a bit hard for the
courts to determine whether the services provided are
trustworthy or not.

M5. JARVI said she has been told that the |latest data reflects
t hat professional private guardians only have ten percent of the
cases, which neans the OGA who regulates the private guardian
industry is also the main conpetitor. She told the nenbers that
when she does hear of a case and goes into court she is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- April 1, 2004



confronted by the OPA contract attorney who is paid by the hour
by the OPA, a court visitor who is paid by the OPA, and nenbers
of the staff of the OPA fighting for the case. She told the
menbers there is a stacked deck against professional private
guar di ans.

M5. JARVI testified that she has no problem wth certification
of professional or private guardians and believes it to be a
good idea for everyone. However, she said she believes that the
guardians in the state OPA should also neet the sane criteria
and court visitors should al so have standards inposed upon them
wWith respect to professional liability. She added that there
should al so be background checks required of OPA staff, court
visitors, and contractors.

Number 0399

M5. JARVI explained that OPA is currently setting fees for her
busi ness at $40 per hour, as opposed to what it actually costs
to provide this service. She explained that she cannot conpete
at that rate and still cover the overhead costs. Ms. Jarvi
reiterated that she is glad to neet any standards and criteria
provided that there is a level playing field and the sane
criteria applies to everyone el se. She explained that there is
a lot of conflict between the private guardi ans and OPA because
it has the option of regulating the private guardi ans. Sonmeone
has to regulate the industry, but by far the large nunber of
conplaints are against OPA, not the private guardi ans, because
no one is regulating OPA, she pointed out. Ms. Jarvi commented
that she believes Al aska statute provides very good protection

She reiterated the unfairness of the agency regulating and
reviewing its conpetition.

M5. JARVI stated that this bill is a self-serving bill to
increase staffing and the role of OPA Under statute OPA is
required to | ook for alternate guardi ans and conservators. This
i s not happening, Ms. Jarvi told the nenbers.

M5. JARVI shared an experience where she had a respondent
nom nate her as guardian, go to court, only to have the OPA
attorney steer the case to OPA Even though he is suppose to

represent the respondent, he also is the guardian ad litem and
projects his wishes as if it were the respondents, she said.

TAPE 04-27, SIDE A

Number 0038

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- April 1, 2004



M5. JARVI enphasized the inportance of having a |evel playing
field. She urged the nenbers to ensure that the OPA does not
conpete with the private sector. The system needs to be fixed,
she sai d.

Nunber 0107

CHAI R W LSON announced that HB 427 would be held in commttee.
ADJ QURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:00 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- April 1, 2004



